
Agenda for a meeting of the Environment and Waste 
Management Overview & Scrutiny Committee to be held 
on Tuesday, 31 January 2017 at 5.30 pm in Committee 
Room 1 - City Hall, Bradford
Members of the Committee – Councillors
CONSERVATIVE LABOUR LIBERAL DEMOCRAT GREEN

Gibbons
Riaz

A Ahmed
Berry
Thornton
Watson

Stubbs Love
Warnes

Alternates:
CONSERVATIVE LABOUR LIBERAL DEMOCRAT GREEN

Ellis
Rickard

Duffy
Iqbal
H Khan
Nazir

R Sunderland H Hussain

NON VOTING CO-OPTED MEMBERS
Nicola Hoggart Environment Agency
Julia Pearson Bradford Environmental Forum

Notes:
 This agenda can be made available in Braille, large print or tape format on request by 

contacting the Agenda contact shown below.
 The taking of photographs, filming and sound recording of the meeting is allowed 

except if Councillors vote to exclude the public to discuss confidential matters covered 
by Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972. Recording activity should be 
respectful to the conduct of the meeting and behaviour that disrupts the meeting (such 
as oral commentary) will not be permitted. Anyone attending the meeting who wishes 
to record or film the meeting's proceedings is advised to liaise with the Agenda Contact 
who will provide guidance and ensure that any necessary arrangements are in place. 
Those present who are invited to make spoken contributions to the meeting should be 
aware that they may be filmed or sound recorded.

 If any further information is required about any item on this agenda, please contact the 
officer named at the foot of that agenda item.

 A briefing for all Members will be held at 1700 in Committee Room 2 on meeting day.
From: To:
Parveen Akhtar, City Solicitor
Agenda Contact: Jane Lythgow
Phone: 01274 432270 / 434287
E-Mail: jane.lythgow@bradford.gov.uk  tracey.sugden@bradford.gov.uk

Public Document Pack

mailto:jane.lythgow@bradford.gov.uk


A. PROCEDURAL ITEMS

1.  ALTERNATE MEMBERS  (Standing Order 34)

The City Solicitor will report the names of alternate Members who are 
attending the meeting in place of appointed Members.  

2.  DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST

(Members Code of Conduct - Part 4A of the Constitution)

To receive disclosures of interests from members and co-opted 
members on matters to be considered at the meeting. The disclosure 
must include the nature of the interest.

An interest must also be disclosed in the meeting when it becomes 
apparent to the member during the meeting.

Notes:

(1) Members may remain in the meeting and take part fully in 
discussion and voting unless the interest is a disclosable 
pecuniary interest or an interest which the Member feels would 
call into question their compliance with the wider principles set 
out in the Code of Conduct.  Disclosable pecuniary interests 
relate to the Member concerned or their spouse/partner.

(2) Members in arrears of Council Tax by more than two months 
must not vote in decisions on, or which might affect, budget 
calculations, and must disclose at the meeting that this 
restriction applies to them.  A failure to comply with these 
requirements is a criminal offence under section 106 of the 
Local Government Finance Act 1992.  

(3) Members are also welcome to disclose interests which are not 
disclosable pecuniary interests but which they consider should 
be made in the interest of clarity.

(4) Officers must disclose interests in accordance with Council 
Standing Order 44.



3.  MINUTES

Recommended –

That the minutes of the meetings held on 25 October 2016 and 29 
November 2016 be signed as a correct record (previously 
circulated).

(Jane Lythgow/Tracey Sugden – 01274 432270/434287)

4.  INSPECTION OF REPORTS AND BACKGROUND PAPERS

(Access to Information Procedure Rules – Part 3B of the Constitution)

Reports and background papers for agenda items may be inspected by 
contacting the person shown after each agenda item.  Certain reports 
and background papers may be restricted.  

Any request to remove the restriction on a report or background paper 
should be made to the relevant Strategic Director or Assistant Director 
whose name is shown on the front page of the report.  

If that request is refused, there is a right of appeal to this meeting.  

Please contact the officer shown below in advance of the meeting if 
you wish to appeal.  

(Jane Lythgow/Tracey Sugden – 01274 432270/434287)

5.  REFERRALS TO THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

The following referral has been made to this Committee up to and 
including the date of publication of this agenda.

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee at its meeting on 11 
January 2017 resolved, amongst other things: 

“That all Overview and Scrutiny Committees consider Departmental Risk 
Registers relevant to their area of responsibility”. 

The Committee is asked to note the referral listed above and decide how 
it wishes to proceed, for example by incorporating the item into the work 
programme, requesting that it be subject to more detailed examination, 
or refer it to an appropriate Working Group/Committee.

 (Mustansir Butt – 01274 432574)



B. OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY ACTIVITIES

6.  EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC

Recommended –

That the public be excluded from the meeting during the 
discussion of the Appendices relating to the White Rose Energy 
report on the grounds that it is likely, in view of the nature of the 
proceedings, that if they were present, exempt information within 
Paragraph 3 (Financial or Business Affairs) of Schedule 12A of 
the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended) would be disclosed 
and it is considered that, in all the circumstances, the public 
interest in allowing the public to remain is outweighed by the 
public interest in excluding public access to the relevant part of 
the proceeding for the following reasons:

It is in the public interest in maintaining the exemption because it 
is in the overriding interest of proper administration that Members 
are made fully aware of the financial implications of any decision 
without prejudicing the financial position of the authority.

(Jane Lythgow - 01274 432270)

7.  CALLED-IN DECISION - WHITE ROSE ENERGY

At its meeting on 10 January 2017 the Executive were advised that 
Leeds City Council has created a local authority led energy services 
company (LESCo) called White Rose Energy (WRE) to provide a 
“fairer” energy supply deal to households across the Yorkshire & 
Humber region. 

White Rose Energy is being opened up as a partnership, to other local 
authorities across the Yorkshire & Humber region. Some authorities 
and housing associations have been involved in discussions to date, 
including Bradford Council. 

Leeds City Council is aiming to have the first partners signed up by 
January 2017.

The Strategic Director Regeneration submitted a report (Executive 
Document “AW” with Not for Publication Appendix A and B) which 
sought Executive approval for Bradford Council to enter into a formal 
partnership with White Rose Energy.



Executive resolved –

That Option 2 contained in Executive Document AW be approved.

That the option to proceed to becoming a partner of White Rose 
Energy be approved; and is in consultation with the Director of Finance 
subject to due diligence which confirms the optimal benefits for working 
as a partner with WRE in delivering energy supply locally; that the 
Service Level Agreement is signed at the earliest opportunity.

Action: Strategic Director, Corporate Services.

The decision of the Executive has been called in. The reasons for the 
call in by Councillor Davies are set out below:

“I request that the decision of the Executive, 10 January 2017, 
relating to Agenda Item 12, White Rose Energy, be called in for 
the reasons detailed below.

 Bradford Council and other members of the Yorkshire 
Purchasing Organisation have an existing contract by 
which they are provided with energy on a group 
procurement basis and there has been a documented 
intention to expand the group procurement approach, to 
include energy supplies for local residents etc

 The decision of the Executive Committee, 10 January 2017, 
for Bradford MDC to become a partner of White Rose 
Energy, potentially undermines the basic principles of the 
Council’s membership of the Yorkshire Purchasing 
Organisation and thus possibly mitigates the potential for 
economies of scale, in terms of energy price reductions for 
residents of the Bradford District

 The fact that the service to residents is described as a “not 
for profit” service, is likely to lead to many local people, 
particularly the more vulnerable, to conclude that this 
means the cheapest service. However, in light of the Warm 
Homes Discount not being offered etc, this may not be the 
case and the Council could find itself in disrepute if it is 
seen to be effectively receiving a £15 commission per 
household per annum, without being absolutely confident 
that all participating residents benefit by more than this 
amount. The Council has not provided projections of 
savings for residents, including the most vulnerable”.   

In accordance with Paragraph 8.6.9 of Part 3E of the Constitution 
Members of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee can, following 
consideration of the matter, resolve to:

(1) Release the decision for implementation.
(2) Refer all or part of the decision back to the Executive to 

reconsider it in the light of any representations the 



Committee may make.  The decision may not be 
implemented until the Executive has met to reconsider its 
earlier decision.

(3) Refer the decision to full Council for consideration, in 
which case the decision may not be implemented until the 
Council has met to consider the matter.

If the Committee makes no resolution, in accordance with 
paragraph 8.6.9 of the Constitution, the decision may be 
implemented.

(Kate Smallwood – 01274 433885)

8.  PROPOSED FINANCIAL PLAN 2017/18 - 2020/21

The report of the Strategic Director, Place, (Document “U”) presents 
budget proposals pertaining to the Environment and Waste Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee which were approved for consultation by the 
Executive on 6 December 2016.

Comments on the budget proposals are requested to inform the 
consultation process.

Recommended – 

That the report be noted.
(Steve Hartley – 01274 434748)

1 - 26

9.  THE TRANSPORTATION OF ANIMAL BY-PRODUCTS.

Previous reference:  Minute 49 and 54 2015/16
Council Minute 69 (2015-16)

Members were reminded that at the meeting of the Committee in April 
2015 a joint report was presented to provide an update on a number of 
actions in relation to the transportation and rendering of animal by 
products at Omega Proteins Ltd, Thornton, Bradford.  The Committee 
requested that an update report be provided and the report of the 
Strategic Director, Health and Wellbeing, (Document “V”) provides 
that update.

Recommended –

That officers be supported in their statutory duties to investigate 
and take enforcement action, as appropriate, and that Ward 
Members and the Environment and Waste Management Overview 
and Scrutiny Chair be advised of any key actions.

(Ruth Lees – 01274 431349)

27 - 38



10.  ENVIRONMENT AND WASTE MANAGEMENT OVERVIEW AND 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE - WORK PROGRAMME 2016/17

Document “W” presents the Committee’s work programme 2016/17.

Recommended – 

(1) That Members consider and comment on the areas of work 
included in the 2016-17 work programme for the Committee.

(2) That Members consider any detailed scrutiny reviews that 
they may wish to conduct.

(3) That the work programme 2016-17 continues to be reviewed 
regularly during the year.

(Mustansir Butt – 01274 432574)

39 - 52

THIS AGENDA AND ACCOMPANYING DOCUMENTS HAVE BEEN PRODUCED, WHEREVER POSSIBLE, ON RECYCLED PAPER



This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

 
Report of the Strategic Director of Place to the me eting of the Environment and Waste 
Management Overview and Scrutiny Committee to be he ld on 31 st January 2017 

U 
 
 
Subject:   
Proposed Financial Plan 2017/18-2020/21  
 
Summary  
 
This report presents budget proposals pertaining to the Environment and Waste 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee which were approved for consultation by the Executive 
On 6 Dec 2016 
 
 

Steve Hartley, SD Place,  
Julian Jackson, Asst. Director, 
Planning and Transportation 

Portfolio:   Environment, Sport and Sustainability 
And Regeneration Planning and Transport 

Report Contact: Steve Hartley 
Phone: (01274) 434748 
E-mail: steve.hartley@bradford.gov.uk 

Environment and Waste Overview and 
Scrutiny 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 8/



2 
 

1. SUMMARY 
 
 This report covers initial draft budget proposals for consultation pertaining to the 

Environment and Waste Overview and Scrutiny Committee and for consultation with 
the public, interested parties, staff and Trade Unions for 2017/18 and 2018/19  

 
2. MAIN MESSAGES FROM EXECUTIVE REPORT OF 6 DECEMBE R 2016 
 
 The Executive report makes proposals about the Council’s revenue and capital 

spending plans from 2017/18 to 2020/21. For the first time, the Council is publishing a 
financial plan which shows how the estimated revenue budget deficit over 4 years will 
be closed. 

 
 The plan is the financial component of the Council Plan 2016 - 2020, and aligns 

resources with priorities. 
 
 It reflects the purposes, priorities and ambitions set out in the Council Plan. The 

proposals seek to reconcile the contradictions between: citizens’ expectations and 
requirements for services and the Council’s ambitions to do the right things for the 
District; statutory and other obligations; and the money available. 

 
 The plan is borne out of an extensive process of outcome-led planning, which focussed 

on the level of investment the Council intends to make in the activities and services 
which are most effective in delivering the Council’s priorities. The report makes detailed 
proposals, for consultation, about spending in 2017/18 and 2018/19. 

 
 For 2019/20 and 2020/21, it indicates the level of affordable spending on Council 

priorities, and signals the need for continuing engagement with stakeholders in 
developing plans and proposals for those years. 

 
3. ALIGNING RESOURCES TO PRIORITIES 
 
 The Council’s investment plans are focussed on people, places and delivering progress 

and not Council departments. The proposals are aligned to the priority outcomes and 
activities identified in the Bradford District and Council Plans as the areas where 
investment, improvements and progress will make the biggest difference to the 
District’s future well being and prosperity. 

 
 The Priority Outcomes for the Council are  

1. Better health better lives 
2. Better skills, more good jobs and a growing economy 
3. Decent homes that people can afford to live in 
4. A great start and good schools for all our children 
5. Safe, clean and active communities  
6. A well-run council, using all our resources to deliver our priorities 

 

 The priority outcomes which relate specifically to the Environment and Waste Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee in this report are: 

 

• Better skills, more good jobs and a growing economy 
• Safe, clean and active communities 

Page 2



3 
 

 
 
 The Council has been talking to people and partners about what matters most and the 

part they can play in delivering shared priorities. What has emerged is a broad 
consensus that Bradford, as the youngest city in the UK, should offer all our young 
people the chance to access good education, skills and employment and to realise their 
potential. The Council’s overriding determination to work with others to ensure this is 
the case cuts, across our proposals for every priority outcome. 

 

4. MAKING OUR INVESTMENT CHOICES 
 
 The Council has to look ever more closely at the ways in which it uses resources in 

order to maximise their impact on priorities. All services have to examine how they can 
change the way they do things, increase efficiency, work collaboratively with others and 
develop creative solutions to the District’s challenges. Business as usual is not an 
option and this is reflected in our investment planning which demands significant 
changes in all aspects of our work. 

 
 Making the most effective investments with diminishing resources inevitably means that 

some areas of activity will no longer be viable in their current form. Some will have to be 
scaled back or cease entirely. Even priority activities will see budget reductions and will 
have to be run differently. 

 
5. OUTCOME-LED PLANNING AND BUDGETING PROCESS  

 

 The proposed spending plans are the result of an extensive and iterative process of 
reviewing and planning across all Council services. The process: 
• Identified the most important results (outcomes) that the Council seeks to 
  achieve to deliver its headline priorities 
• Reviewed the activities the Council currently undertakes in pursuit of those 
  results, to see which are the most effective, which activities can be reshaped to 
• deliver the same or better results, and which activities can be curtailed 
• Identified unavoidable liabilities 
• Assessed the deliverability and acceptability of possible changes from the status 
  quo 
• Identified the level of resources that can be afforded for each outcome. 
• The result of this process is the proposed budget – the net expenditure the 

Council will incur each year. 
 

 The Council Plan 2016/20 provides more information about how resources will 
prioritised on the things that will have the biggest positive impact on the district and 
citizens over the next four years. 

 
6. CONTEXT FOR THE PROPOSED FINANCIAL PLAN 
 
 The proposals have been developed in a very challenging financial environment. 

Budgets continue to shrink as the Government reduces its financial support to local 
authorities. Yet demand for services, particularly for social care, is increasing each year 
and costs keep rising. 

 
 The Council retains hugely important responsibilities relating to the care of vulnerable 

children and adults. Meeting the cost of these responsibilities inevitably limits the 

Page 3



4 
 

resources available for investment in other services and activities.  Decisions have to 
be made about where to invest resources to make the biggest difference to our priority 
outcomes. 

 
 Over the last six years the Council has budgeted for more than £250m in savings and 

increased Council tax. This proposed plan shows that further savings of £81.6m will be 
required, after taking account of taxation increases, the net effect of changes in specific 
grants, and the consequences of inflationary and demographic pressures on the costs 
of services. 

 
7. Key Challenges and Ambitions 
 
 As the balance of funding for local services shifts from Government to the Council, 

improving quality of life and sustaining local services will increasingly rely on our 
collective ability to reduce dependency on high cost care services and expensive 
interventions, to collaborate across organisational boundaries, and to generate 
inclusive economic growth in which everyone can share. In these ways we can 
maximise the resources for other services and infrastructure.  In particular, we have to 
capitalise on our youth, energy and vitality by making sure that our young people are 
connected to economic opportunities. Bradford’s future well-being and prosperity 
depends on success in providing our young people with access to good education, 
skills and jobs so they can be productive citizens. 

 
8. ONGOING BUDGET ENGAGEMENT AND CONSULTATION 
 
 The Council has duties to consult on the budget proposals for 2017/18 and 2018/19. 

The consultation is to understand people’s views, which can be conscientiously taken 
into account in finalising the budget in February. It is also an opportunity to increase 
public understanding of the scale of the financial challenge and why difficult decisions 
need to be made. 

 
 The consultation commenced on publication of this report at the  Executive meeting on 

6 December 2016. Consultation activity will then continue until 12 February 2017, the 
day before papers for the Executive meeting on 21 February are published.  
Consultation will take place through discussion at events (some facilitated by partner 
organisations), on-line, via social media, and by direct mailing, as well as specific 
consultation where appropriate. 

 
9. RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
The principal risks to the proposals are: 

•  2016/17 financial performance may show that there are structural recurrent 
deficits in the baseline budget, which will need to be dealt with before the final 
budget is set in February, particularly in relation to social care. At the mid-year, 
the risk of a £6m overspend was reported. The proposed budget assumes that 
this risk will be fully mitigated 

• The Local Government Settlement (expected in late December) may imbalance 
the financial plan, either through changing the actual forecast flow of specific 
grants, or by requiring revisions to the assumptions underpinning the forecasts.  
The Council has agreed a 4 year deal with DCLG over the level of RSG, which 
partly eliminates the risk 

Page 4



5 
 

•  Economic signals are that inflation may begin to rise. It is not expected that 
public sector pay will rise further than forecasts, but suppliers and households 
could be affected, which diminishes their real-terms resources 

•  Consultation outcomes may mean that specific proposals cannot be delivered or 
need recasting. 

 
10. LEGAL APPRAISAL 
 
 The Council must comply with all legal requirements and local agreements to consult 

on proposals to change or withdraw services before the Council is asked to make any 
final decisions. 

 
 The legal requirements for a proper consultation exercise are as follows – 

•  Consultation must be at a time when proposals a re at a formative stage. 
•  Sufficient reasons for the proposals must be given to allow intelligent 

consideration and response 
•  Adequate time must be given for a response 
• The product of the consultation must be conscientiously taken into account 

before the decision is made. 
 
 11. 1  Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 (the public sector equality duty) provides 

that: 
(1) A public authority must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to 
the need to - 
(a) eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct  

   that is prohibited by or under this Act; 
(b) advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant  

   protected characteristic and persons who do not share it; 
(c) foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and persons who do not share it. 
(2) A person who is not a public authority but who exercises public functions 
must, in the exercise of those functions, have due regard to the matters 
mentioned in subsection (1). 
(3) Having due regard to the need to advance equality of opportunity between 
persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and persons who do 
not share it involves having due regard, in particular, to the need to – 
(a) remove or minimise disadvantages suffered by persons who share a 
relevant protected characteristic that are connected to that characteristic; 
(b) take steps to meet the needs of persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic that are different from the needs of persons who do not share 
it; 
(c) encourage persons who share a relevant protected characteristic to 
participate in public life or in any other activity in which participation by such 
persons is disproportionately low. 
(4) The steps involved in meeting the needs of disabled persons that are 
different from the needs of persons who are not disabled include, in 
particular, steps to take account of disabled persons' disabilities. 
(5) Having due regard to the need to foster good relations between persons who 
share a relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it 
involves having due regard, in particular, to the need to – 
(a) tackle prejudice, and 
(b) promote understanding. 
(6) Compliance with the duties in this section may involve treating some persons 

Page 5



6 
 

more favourably than others; but that is not to be taken as permitting conduct 
that would otherwise be prohibited by or under this Act. 
(7) The relevant protected characteristics are - age; disability; gender   

   reassignment; pregnancy and maternity; race; religion or belief; sex and sexual 
   orientation. 

 
Officers have prepared equality impact assessments on the proposals to 
assist elected members in having regard to this duty. 
 

10.2 Section 3(1) Local Government Act 1999 imposes a duty on local authorities to 
make arrangements to secure continuous improvement in the way in which its 
functions are exercised, having regard to a combination of economy, efficiency 
and effectiveness. Section 3(2) requires local authorities to consult 
representatives of 
• persons liable to pay any tax in respect of the authority 
• persons liable to pay non-domestic rates 
• persons who use or who are likely to use services provided by the authority, 
• persons appearing to the authority to have an interest in any area within which 

   the authority carries out functions for the purpose of deciding how to fulfil the  
   duty imposed by Section 3(1). 

 
11.3 Pursuant to Section 188 Trade Union and Labour Relations (Consolidation) Act 

1992 (TULRCA 1992) the Council as employer is required to consult the 
recognised  Trade Unions where there is a proposal to dismiss by reason of 
redundancy (which includes voluntary redundancy) 20 or more employees at an 
establishment within a period of 90 days or less. If 100 or more employees are 
at risk of dismissal by reason of redundancy at any one establishment within a 
period of 90 days or less the consultation must begin at least 45 days before the 
first of the dismissals takes effect. 

 
 Where a proposal gives rise to a transfer under the Transfer of Undertakings 

(Protection of Employment) Regulations 2006, trade union consultation will be 
carried out in accordance with those Regulations. 

 
OTHER IMPLICATIONS: 
 
11. EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY 
 
 Each proposal is subject to an initial Equality Impact Assessment, which will be 

developed through the consultation period. The consultation provides the opportunity 
for the Council better to understand:  
• the consequences for individuals with protected characteristics affected by 

changes, particularly related to proposals relating to social care 
• any cumulative impact on groups with protected characteristics. 

 
12. SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
 There are no direct sustainability implications resulting from this report. 
 
13. GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS IMPACTS 
 
 There are no direct greenhouse gas emissions implications resulting from this report. 
 

Page 6



7 
 

14. HUMAN RIGHTS ACT 
 
 There are no direct human rights implications resulting from this report. 
 
15. TRADE UNION 
 
  In accordance with the requirements of Section 188 Trade Union and Labour Relations 

(Consolidation Act) 1992, consultation with the Trade Unions commenced on 28th 
November 2016 The new proposals provided to the Trade Unions highlight the areas 
where staff could be at risk of redundancy and across all the proposals show that the 
proposed likely full time equivalent (FTE) reductions in a number of areas is calculated 
to be 118 FTEs reductions for 2017/18 and 107 in 2018/19. This is in addition to the 
proposed 139 FTEs reductions for 2017/18 about which the Council commenced 
consultations with the Trade Unions on 23rd November 2015 (and which number was 
subsequently amended during consultation to 191). Where a proposal gives rise to a 
transfer under the Transfer of Undertakings (Protection of Employment) Regulations 
2006, trade union consultation will be carried out in accordance with those regulations.  
Senior Management will be explaining the proposals in more detail to the Trade Unions 
at the Trade Union meetings scheduled to take place from the 7th December 2016. 

 
  Equality impact assessments (EQIA) have been prepared on all proposals that have a 

staffing implication, these are available as part of the consultation process. All 
information from individual EQIAs will feed into an overall Corporate EQIA.  Staff will 
also be briefed on the proposals. 

 
16. VOLUNTARY AND COMMUNITY SECTOR (VCS) 
 
  Given the scope of VCS involvement in the delivery of services, the scale of Council 

spending with the sector and the size of Government spending cuts, it is inevitable that 
VCS organisations will be affected by cuts to Council budgets. Work is underway to 
deliver some of last year’s savings proposals which affect VCS organisations as we 
look ahead to these new proposals. 

 
 Some of the initial proposals will require VCS service providers to work differently and, 

as with all providers of public services, will prompt them further to innovate and 
prioritise within the resources the Council can afford. 

 
 Initial impact assessments suggest that some VCS organisations may only be affected 

by one proposal but this may be sufficient to affect their viability. A small number may 
be affected by more than one; and for others it may be the cumulative impact of funding 
squeezes. 

 
 We recognise that some organisations will need to seek alternative funding and that 

some may consider collaborating or even merging with others to share common costs. 
We will continue to spend a significant amount of its resources with VCS organisations. 
The Executive recognises that a vibrant and thriving VCS will be critical if we are going 
to make progress on the District’s priorities with much less public money, and commits 
to maintaining a constructive, collaborative relationship with the VCS. 

 
17. WARD IMPLICATIONS 
 
 In general terms, where the proposed cuts affect services to the public, the impact will 

typically be felt across all wards. Some proposals could potentially have a more direct 

Page 7



8 
 

local impact on individual organisations and/or communities. It is expected that the 
consultation process will allow an analysis of local impacts to inform final decisions. 

 
18. CONCLUSIONS 
 
 The proposals align resources with priorities. They support economic growth, maintain 

key universal services, help to manage expensive future demand and support children 
and young people in their early years, through school and into their participation in the 
economy. They provide for effective, democratically accountable leadership that helps 
to influence and shape the District’s future.  Despite the financial challenges we will 
continue to deliver beyond the statutory minimum where possible, and in so doing we 
will ultimately reduce the cost of people requiring statutory provision. 

 
  The proposals demand transformations in the ways that the Council and others work, 

without which we will be unable to achieve our objectives. 
 
 The scope and scale of Council services will change. Services will be delivered from 

fewer buildings with less face to face contact with the public and more digital and online 
provision. Some services may be provided through different models of delivery for 
example, leisure or cultural trusts, others will be dependent on the efforts of volunteers 
to sustain them and others will cease. Resources will increasingly be targeted at the 
most vulnerable and disadvantaged. The relationship between public services and 
citizens will shift to emphasise a shared responsibility for achieving outcomes.  The 
Council and health services will need to manage demand for care by investing in 
support to keep people well and independent and the transformation of the health and 
social care system will be vital if other services are to be sustained.  All this will demand 
lots of change over a relatively short space of time and resources will need to be 
allocated to ensure that there is sufficient capacity to deliver that change successfully. 

 
 Mature and well developed partnerships have demonstrated that they can deliver and 

innovate across a range of disparate disciplines and cross-cutting issues. Taken 
together, the District’s whole resources represent a significant and impressive asset 
base. If we can all pull together to galvanise our full potential, sharing resources, ideas 
and responsibility, we can achieve our shared ambitions for Bradford District. 

 
19. NOT FOR PUBLICATION DOCUMENTS 
 
 None 
 
20. RECOMMENDATIONS  
 

That members of the Committee note the budget proposals and provide comment to 
inform the consultation process. 

 
21. APPENDICES 
 
 24.1  Appendix A  - New Proposals relating to Environment and Waste Management 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee.   
 

21.2 Appendix B  -  Schedule of Decisions of Budget Council February 2016 for 
Information and not subject to Consultation relating to Environment and Waste 
Management Overview and Scrutiny Committee.   

 

Page 8



9 
 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS  
 
•  Report of the Director of Finance to the meeting of Executive  held on 6 December 

2016, Including Appendices A,B,C,D,E, F, and G 
• Council Plan 2016-2020, adopted by Council October 18 2016 
• Medium Term Financial Strategy, adopted by Council October 18 2016 
• Mid Year Financial Position Statement and Performance Report for 2016/17, 
• approved by Executive November 9 2016 
 

Page 9



10 
 

             NEW DRAFT PROPOSALS OPEN FOR CONSULTAT ION UNTIL FULL COUNCIL ON 21 February 2017 ...APPENDIX A 
 
Better Skills, More Good Jobs and a Growing Economy  
Regeneration 
 
Ref - 4R2 Regeneration Services - West Yorkshire Combined Authority (WYCA) T ransport Levy  
Total 2016-17 Net Budget for Service Area after pre -agreed savings & removal of  
transitional funding £24.0m  
 
2017-18           2018-19            Total            % of current base  
£750,000         £750,000           £1,500,000   6%  
 
This proposals relates to the £24m contribution from Bradford paid to West Yorkshire Metro for transport operations. The 
contribution is raised as a levy, based on population size, across all 5 West Yorkshire Councils. Bradford’s contribution includes 
a £1.4m Transport Fund for investment in transport infrastructure projects.  
West Yorkshire Local Authority colleagues have requested that the WYCA consider a minimum 3% reduction (£750,000 for 
Bradford) in the 2016/17 levy and then a further percentage reduction per year to achieve a £750,000 saving each year 
.  
Equality impact on the Equality Duty protected char acteristics & low income groups  
This proposal could have an adversely disproportionate impact on both the young (under 18’s) and elderly sectors of the 
community as the funding which is being reduced is specifically used to fund schemes/programmes which are delivered for these 
groups.  
 
Mitigation  
The negative impacts would need to be considered within the wider West Yorkshire context in consultation with WYCA with 
whom the ultimate decisions on which aspects of their budgets to reduce would rest.  
Some aspects of expenditure of the Transport Levy are protected by national regulation and hence are likely to remain largely 
unaffected by any reductions as a consequence of this proposal. It is therefore anticipated that those elements of expenditure 
which are discretionary are likely to bear the majority of any agreed levy reduction.  
See EIA 4R2  
 
Ref - 4R3 Regeneration Services - Commercialise Highway Del ivery Unit function  
Total 2016-17 Net Budget for Service Area after pre -agreed savings & removal of transitional funding £ 2.4m  
 
2017-18           2018-19            Total            % of current base  
£223,000         £223,000           £446,000      18%  

P
age 10



11 
 

 
This proposal is to increase the range of services provided by the Council’s Highway Delivery Unit through increasing 
involvement in existing capital works programmes (other than highway maintenance) and delivery of services which are 
externally funded (e.g. installation of residential dropped crossings or services under the New Roads and Street Works Act).  
 
Equality impact on the Equality Duty protected char acteristics & low income groups  
N/A  
 
Mitigation  
N/A  
 
Ref - 4R4 Regeneration Services - Centralisation of Urban Traffic Control including redu ced maintenance of street 
lighting asset  
Total 2016-17 Net Budget for Service Area after pre -agreed savings & removal of transitional funding £ 0.5m  
 
2017-18           2018-19             Total             % of current base  
£119,000         £246,000            £365,000       77%  
 
This proposal is based around the current West Yorkshire Combined Authority programme to establish a West Yorkshire UTMC 
(Urban Traffic Management & Control) service combining all traffic signal staff from all West Yorkshire districts with a presence 
from bus operators, emergency services & WYCA in a central location.  
It should be noted that as this project is not within the direct control of the Council. Delays in implementation may adversely 
impact the delivery of savings within the proposed timeframe.  
 
Equality impact on the Equality Duty protected char acteristics & low income groups  
N/A  
Mitigation  
N/A  
 
Ref - 4R5 Regeneration Services - Increase charges within Planning,  Transportation and Highways Services  
Total 2016-17 Net Budget for Service Area after pre -agreed savings & removal of  
transitional funding £0.6m  
 
2017-18           2018-19            Total               % of current base  
£30,000           £30,000            £60,000            11%  
 

P
age 11



12 
 

The scope of this proposal is to increase discretionary charges within the Planning, Transportation & Highways Services together 
with introducing new charges for aspects of the services functions which bring it in line with neighbouring authorities. Specific 
proposals within Transportation & Highways include:  
● Increasing charges associated with Section 38 and Section 278 Agreements including raising the minimum amount of charge 
payable including to £2,000 per agreement with a standard charge of 9% of the bond amount for technical inspection and 
validation.  
● Introducing a new annual charge for café licence applications, inspections and approvals of £500 per permit.  
● Introducing a minimum charge for events on the highway to cover staff costs associated with their planning and co-ordination 
except where such events are street parties.  
● Introducing a charge to permit the temporary installation of developer signs on street lighting columns inclusive of their 
manufacture and removal at the end of a prescribed period.  
 
Proposals within Planning include:  
● Increasing pre-application advice service charges above the standard rate of inflation.  
● Introducing a charge for dealing with high hedge complaints.  
● Introduction of a charge for the street naming and numbering services with appropriate exception for street names associated 
with injured/killed military service personnel.  
 
Equality impact on the Equality Duty protected char acteristics & low income groups  
The introduction of fees and charges in relation to dealing with high hedge complaints may lead to disproportionate impacts on 
the low paid sectors of the community and senior citizens. Currently, receipt and investigation of complaints in relation to high 
hedges are processed by the Council on a free of charge basis.  
Introduction of a minimum charge for co-ordination and marshalling of events on the highway could adversely affect those 
community interest groups/areas of protected characteristics who wish to arrange an event on the highway. The impact of this 
proposal may lead to a number of events no longer taking place along traditional routes given the costs associated with the 
administration and approval of traffic management. 
  
Mitigation  
Discounts for various types of organisations in relation to charges for events on the highway could be introduced to help 
minimise the impact of this aspect of the proposal. It should be noted that this proposal will not affect the holding of a street party 
which will remain free of charge as per national guidance.  
The mechanism for charging for dealing with high hedge complaints may similarly introduce a discount for members of the 
community over a certain age making a complaint.  
See EIA 4R5  
 
Ref - 4R6 Regeneration Services - Options related to discretionary budgets for  

P
age 12



13 
 

highway maintenance works including minor drainage improvements, pavement  repairs and footpath and snicket 
maintenance .  

 
Total 2016-17 Net Budget for Service Area after pre -agreed savings & removal of  transitional funding £0.7m  
 
2017-18                2018-19            Total            % of current base  
£128,000              (£6,400)            £121,600       18%  
 
The above savings profile assumes adoption of the level of service defined below whereby a  
direct budget reduction of £128,000 would be implemented in the 2017-18 financial year.  
The Council currently allocates an annual budget of £50,000 per parliamentary constituency to allow minor scale maintenance 
works such as drainage repairs and improvements, pavement and pedestrian area maintenance, footpath maintenance and 
urban snicket maintenance.  
The proposal would see a reduction of the current service level provision meaning each parliamentary constituency would 
receive circa £25,000 for minor maintenance repairs. Under this proposal works would continue to be prioritised on drainage 
maintenance, unclassified road maintenance, issues with a “life and death” consequence with very minimal levels of funding for 
footpath work per constituency and no funding to undertake snicket maintenance.  
 
Equality impact on the Equality Duty protected char acteristics & low income groups  
Whilst the cost of the works delivered through the local area maintenance budgets may be relatively small, the impact of non-
action could have a disproportionate impact on the lives of the districts citizens. Some footpaths and snickets are currently 
impassable due to lack of maintenance which is a consequence of the current reduced budget allocation.  
 
Mitigation  
As the scope of the impact arising from this proposal could be wide ranging and dependent  
upon the nature of any specific maintenance requirements, it is not possible to propose  
measures to fully mitigate or eliminate the disproportionate impacts.  
However, the nature of the prioritisation framework (which is still to be developed), which would be used to assess the priority for 
action of any requests, could incorporate appropriate consideration of the characteristic of the person needing action (e.g. 
include age and/or disability criteria).  
See EIA 4R6  
 
Ref - 4R7 Regeneration Services - Reduction in Highways Services operational budgets associated with operational 
accommodation, transport gateway and subway mainten ance.  
Total 2016-17 Net Budget for Service Area after pre -agreed savings & removal of transitional funding £ 0.2m  
 

P
age 13



14 
 

2017-18            2018-19                         Total                % of current base  
£64,000            £31,600                         £95,600            43%  
 
Transport Gateway and Subway Maintenance  
This proposal would reduce maintenance activities on gateway corridors to Bradford city centre together with maintenance of 
current subways and underpasses in the city centre. The Council currently allocates an annual budget of £127,000 to fund minor 
scale maintenance works.  
 
HDU Depot Reduction  
This proposal is to reduce the operational bases used by both the Highways Delivery Unit (DLO), Traffic & Road Safety (North) 
and Highway Maintenance (North) teams through relocation of existing staff, plant and materials from Stockbridge depot to other 
operational bases to realise budget savings equivalent to the annual maintenance and running costs of the Stockbridge facility 
charged to the service.  
 
Equality impact on the Equality Duty protected char acteristics & low income groups  
Failure to undertake any maintenance of gateways and subways will very rapidly lead to these assets deteriorating and 
potentially becoming impassable.  
Winter maintenance operations would be significantly impacted by the reduction in DLO operational bases meaning longer times 
being necessary to grit the routes in the district  
potentially meaning that areas in the north of the district may be untreated in periods of inclement weather.  
This could therefore impact on some of the protected characteristics. 
  
Mitigation  
Any loss of a subway/underpass facility could be offset through the introduction of a  
crossing. Research has shown that these types of crossing are more attractive to pedestrian  
users than subways as they are generally perceived as reducing the fear of attack/crime for  
pedestrian users. However, such facilities on major corridors are problematic as they need  
to cross six lanes of traffic and therefore their design can lead to increased delays for  
general traffic and increased frustration for drivers. 
  
The impact of the closure of the depot at Stocksbridge and the consequent impact on winter  
maintenance operations will need to be carefully considered within the context of winter  
gritting routes and treatment programmes. Consideration of more pro-active treatment  
regimes for areas in the north of the district will need to be developed in order to ensure that  
problems associated with reactive maintenance are mitigated.  
See EIA 4R7  

P
age 14



15 
 

 
Ref - 4R8 Regeneration  Services - Increase fine income by increasing enforcement of c ontraventions by statutory 
undertakers of the Yorkshire Common Permit Scheme ( YCPS) on highways.  
Total 2016-17 Net Budget for Service Area after pre -agreed savings & removal of  transitional funding £n/a  
 
2017-18            2018-19                      Total            % of current base  
£30,000            £70,000                      £100,000      n/a  
The Council has a statutory duty under the Traffic Management Act 2004 to coordinate road works to ensure traffic moves 
efficiently around its network. In recognition of this duty the Council sought powers from the Secretary of State to introduce a 
Permit Scheme on key transport corridors in the District. This scheme provides income both from the applications for permits to 
carry out works on the highway and from the statutory powers to fine utility companies that breach the scheme.  
The income from permit applications is used to cover the staff costs of operating the scheme. The Council must review its fee 
income every year to ensure that surpluses are not accruing and similarly that costs are not exceeding income. Where either of 
these conditions occur it must adjust its fee charges every third year to reflect operational realities (either increasing or 
decreasing charges accordingly).  
 
Equality impact on the Equality Duty protected char acteristics & low income groups  
N/A  
Mitigation  
N/A  
 
Ref - 4R9 Regeneration Services - Reduce Area Committee support by Highways and stop processing/charge for all 
requests for service delivery for non-casualty led projects.  
Total 2016-17 Net Budget for Service Area after pre -agreed savings & removal of transitional funding £ 0.3m  
 
2017-18            2018-19                    Total             % of current base  
£0                   £124,000                    £124,000      40%  
 
Introduce an alternative Governance structure for consideration of all highway related matters rather than the current Area 
Committee structure thereby reducing the officer numbers required to effectively service five committees. In addition, this 
proposal recommends that elements of non-casualty led works and requests for service delivery are either stopped or charged 
for at cost rates.  
Equality impact on the Equality Duty protected char acteristics & low income groups  
 
Any replacement decision making body would need to appropriately consider the views and opinions of the protected 
characteristics and demonstrate appropriate consideration/due regard to the Equality Act duties. The exact form of this decision 

P
age 15



16 
 

making body is yet to be determined and hence the impact of this proposal cannot fully be explored at this time.  
The introduction of an administrative charge to cover the additional processing necessary for checking the validity of a disabled 
persons parking permit (DPPP) would produce a disproportionate negative impact on this protected characteristic.  
Provision of some of the other proposed highway services (e.g. vehicular dropped crossings and keep clear markings) may 
similarly have a disproportionate impact on those sectors of the community where the ability to pay for services will be an issue 
(e.g. elderly residents or those residents on low income).  
 
Mitigation  
Decisions taken through the new body would need to ensure that appropriate consideration is given to the Equalities Act on all 
matters progressed. Therefore any decision recording process must ensure that an appropriate record of the regard given to 
Equalities matters on the decision matter is retained.  
See EIA 4R9  
 
Ref - 4R11 Regeneration Services - Introduction of limited lighting hours / switch off  of street lighting on non -principal 
road network  
Total 2016-17 Net Budget for Service Area after pre -agreed savings & removal of transitional funding £ 1.4m  
 
2017-18             2018-19                 Total                    % of current base  
£50,000            £60,000                  £110,000               8%  
 
This proposal is to arrange for the introduction of limited lighting hours or switch off of street lighting on non-principal road 
network to save energy costs. Typical non-lit hours could be from 12am-5am (or longer on lesser populated/used areas of the 
non-principal network). Proposals for groups of streets to be included in any switch off zone would need to be developed in 
accordance with appropriate standards including assessment of road traffic collision data, criminal activity and infrastructure 
condition/type etc.  
A small capital investment in appropriate lighting management equipment/software would initially be required for any sections of 
non-principal network selected for limited lighting hours but this initial cost would be rapidly recovered as energy costs are fully 
saved during non-lit hours.  
 
Equality impact on the Equality Duty protected char acteristics & low income groups  
Introduction of this proposal in additional areas of the district will have a disproportionately negative impact on some protected 
characteristics.  
Fear of crime amongst the elderly will increase where back streets and residential roads are unlit during the early hours of the 
morning and it is from this characteristic group that the greatest impact is anticipated.  
Similarly fear of crime on unlit streets could adversely impact the protected characteristic groups of disability, race, religion/belief 
and sex who may all experience increased levels of concern about the proposal.  

P
age 16



17 
 

 
Mitigation  
The Council has developed a set of criteria which are used to select streets where limited lighting hours are introduced. These 
criteria assess road safety statistics, criminal activity records, infrastructure condition and involve consultation with the local 
community on any proposals being prepared.  
Any streets which are considered appropriate to be included in the programme of limited lighting operation will be fully appraised 
using this model before a decision is taken on whether or not to implement the limited lighting hours infrastructure is taken. 
Those streets with high criminal activity and/or poor road safety records will not be included in the project beyond their initial 
assessment.  
To avoid any undue distress to local residents only those streets which “pass” the desktop assessment will be consulted upon 
with the local community.  
See EIA 4R11  
 
Ref - 4R20 Regeneration - Sustrans promotes young people travelling to school  
actively and/or sustainably  
Note - This relates to funding linked to a Public Health Inter Departmental Agreement and should be seen as a loss of 
funding to the Service  
 
Total 2016-17 Net Budget for Service Area after pre -agreed savings & removal of transitional funding £ 0.056m  
 
2017-18             2018-19               Total                  % of current base  
£0                      £28,000               £28,000             50%  
 
This budget saving proposal is phased over two financial years commencing in 2018-19 to allow for discussions with schools 
involved in supporting the programme. The first change in 2017-18 would be to no longer accept new schools onto the 
programme with existing schools provision being phased out over the following years of this budget proposal.  
 
Equality impact on the Equality Duty protected char acteristics & low income groups  
The nature of the Active School Travel programme is such that its cessation would effectively adversely affect the young children 
and adolescents which the programme targets through removal of the opportunities afforded under the programme to embed 
health lifestyle choices  
Similarly, as children with a sedentary lifestyle are predominantly found in areas of deprivation and low incomes, the cessation of 
this programme would likewise have an impact on this protected characteristic.  
Mitigation  
Working with schools it may be possible to introduce aspects of the programme into the school curriculum, however given the 
demands on pupil contact time created by the national curriculum this may not be a significant mitigation proposition.  

P
age 17



18 
 

See EIA 4R20  
 
 
Ref - 4R21 Regeneration - Road Safety Training programme in Schools  
Note - This relates to funding linked to a Public Health Inter Departmental Agreement  
and should be seen as a loss of funding to the Service  
 
Total 2016-17 Net Budget for Service Area after pre -agreed savings & removal of transitional funding £ 0.3m 
  
2017-18             2018-19            Total               % of current base  
£0                     £62,500            £62,500            24%  
 
The Road Safety Team operates on a district-wide basis. Staff and financial resources are allocated to education, training and 
publicity programmes based on priorities identified for greatest impact on casualty reduction. This reduction would result in a net 
reduction of staff resources available for this type of work.  
This proposal would reduce the funding for the team, effectively reducing the exposure of road safety training and support to 
local children of both pre- and school age.  
Equality impact on the Equality Duty protected char acteristics & low income groups  
This proposal will adversely affect the younger sections of society, or those from wards with a particular road safety problem 
(which tend to be predominantly low income inner city wards) who will not be able to access the same level of training and 
awareness activities as are currently provided by the Road Safety Team.  
Mitigation  
Nominal charges for provision of training programmes could be introduced, however these have historically been seen as 
barriers to ensuring take up of the training provided and therefore may have a counter effect to that anticipated.  
Programmes of training interventions may need to be targeted to Key Wards in each year due to reduced resources. This would 
ensure that those wards with an identified road safety issue receive some training but may mean that some areas of the district 
similarly are not offered any training in future.  
Alternative funding sources for the provision of this service could be explored within West Yorkshire to offset the reduction in 
funding.  
See EIA 4R21  
 
Safe, Clean and Active Communities 
Environment and Sport 
 
Ref - 4E2 Environment an d Sport - Waste Collection and Disposal Services  
Total 2016-17 Net Budget for Service Area after pre -agreed savings & removal of transitional funding £ 21.6m  

P
age 18



19 
 

 
2017-18             2018-19             Total               % of current base  
£50,000             £807,000            £857,000          4%  
Budget proposals have already been approved for the introduction of Alternate Weekly Collection (AWC) of residual waste, 
which will also see the introduction of fully co-mingled recycling via a Mechanical Recycling Facility which has been installed at 
Bowling Back Lane Household Waste and Recycling Centre. This will enable residents to re-cycle all types of plastics and 
therefore further reduce waste into the residual bin which will support residents with this change to AWC and encourage greater 
recycling. The year 2 savings (2018-19) will include the remaining full year effect of the year 1 planned reduction in rounds and a 
further reduction of 3 rounds with associated restructuring of Waste Services.  
The Council is currently part way through a procurement process to award a contract for the disposal of its residual waste 
following the approval of the "Municipal Waste Minimisation & Management Strategy" by Executive in January 2015. The 
procurement of new waste treatment arrangements are due to be finalised by October 2017.  
 
Equality impact on the Equality Duty protected char acteristics & low income groups  
The proposal is likely to have no or a low impact on everyone so it is considered that there is no disproportionate impact on any 
group who share protected characteristics. It is however recognised that a move to alternate weekly collection could result in the 
residual waste bin being heavier to move around.  
Mitigation  
It is recognised that the elderly and disabled could be impacted upon by a heavier bin where there are mobility or accessibility 
issues. The Council already provides assisted bin lifts for residents in such circumstances. If this service is required, residents 
can call the Council Contact Centre and a home visit will be arranged to see how the Council can help.  
See EIA 4E2  
 
Ref - 4E3 Environment and Sport - Trade Waste  
Total 2016-17 Net Budget for Service Area after pre -agreed savings & removal of  
transitional funding (£0.5m)  
2017-18             2018-19                Total             % of current base  
£50,000              £0                        £50,000         (9%)  
The Council operates a Trade Waste Collection Service to local businesses. It currently has approximately 3000 customers 
collecting 19,500 tonnes of residual waste and 800 tonnes of recycling. Process improvements have been identified which will 
release cashable savings from a revision of the existing charging policy and a move to cashless payment systems. In addition 
the service actively seeks out new business to generate additional revenue. Our customers are predominantly small to medium 
size businesses which in the future could be supported by the domestic waste collection service. This would then reduce trade 
waste service costs and make the service more competitive.  
Equality impact on the Equality Duty protected char acteristics & low income groups  
N/A  

P
age 19



20 
 

Mitigation  
N/A  
 
Ref - 4E5 Environment and Sport - Street Cleansing and Public Conveniences  
Total 2016-17 Net Budget for Service Area after pre -agreed savings & removal of  transitional funding £4.5m 
  
2017-18             2018-19           Total               % of current base  
£0                      £336,300         £336,300         7%  
There are currently 25 Ward based clean teams and 17 mechanical sweepers. This proposal would see a reduction in the 
number of ward based clean teams and mechanical sweepers (precise number to be determined during consultation period) and 
the removal of funding for all public toilets (except City Park).  
The service would continue to employ any new starters working to a standard 30 hour working week, mitigating the impact 
through increased use of technology.  
Potential income from a City and Town Centre environmental enforcement contract may generate Fixed Penalty Notice income 
to offset the loss of the one street cleansing team.  
Equality impact on the Equality Duty protected char acteristics & low income groups  
The proposal has the potential to have a low impact on predominantly inner city highly densely populated areas. The people who 
live in these areas are in the main white people on low incomes and communities from BME backgrounds.  
In terms of closure of the toilets there is likely to be a disproportionate impact on older people, pregnant women, parents 
requiring access to baby changing facilities, young children, transgender community, disabled people, particularly those with 
complex needs, and people who, because of their physical condition, may need to visit the toilet more regularly.  
Mitigation  
Increased waste awareness and anti litter/education campaigns in affected areas and the new robust enforcement model for 
targeting those people that drop litter, will mitigate the impact the street cleansing proposals.  
In the case of public toilets work will take place to ascertain whether Parish/Town Councils, community or other voluntary groups 
could take over the running of those blocks proposed for closure. Consideration will also be given to whether local businesses, 
cafes, restaurants etc. would allow people to use their facilities.  
See EIA 4E5  
 
 
Ref - 4E6 Environment and Sport - Cessation of the Pest Control Service  
Total 2016-17 Net Budget for Service Area after pre -agreed savings & removal of  transitional funding £0.036m  
 
2017-18                 2018-19                  Total               % of current base  
£0                         £36,200                   £36,200           100%  
 

P
age 20



21 
 

The Council will stop providing a Pest Control Service. The provision of a pest control treatment service is not a statutory service 
and it is currently running at a loss. Due to the availability within the private sector for a similar product at a similar cost it is 
proposed to stop delivery of this service.  
The Council’s prices for pest control treatments are similar to the private sector. Therefore the financial impact on residents 
would be minimal.  
Equality impact on the Equality Duty protected char acteristics & low income groups  
This proposal could have an adverse impact on people on low incomes as it removes the facility to pay for treatments in 
instalments although the equality assessment carried out indicated that this proposal is likely to have no or a low impact on 
everyone, and so there is no disproportionate impact on any group who share protected characteristics  
Mitigation  
The most common request for treatment is to deal with rats and mice and there is at least one company in Bradford which is able 
to provide the service cheaper than the Council.  
See EIA 4E6  

 
 
 
 P

age 21



22 
 

Appendix B   -  Schedule of Decisions of Budget Council February 20 16 for Information  and not subject to Consultation 
relating to Environment and Waste Management Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 
 
REGENERATION 
 
NEW 
REF  

Service Area or function  Proposal for Change  2017/18 
£’000 
Impact  
 

3R13  Planning Transportation & Highways  CCTV Services  
The proposal would seek to generate income through exploring 
the commercial opportunities for example services to 
education, other authorities and the private sector.  

100  

3R14  Planning Transportation & Highways  Street Lighting – Partial Night Switch Off  
Switching selected street lights off between midnight and 5am 
will reduce energy costs. Other authorities have adopted this 
approach. Determining the specific areas subject to the 
proposals will need surveying, research and consultation to be 
undertaken. There would be no switch off proposed in areas 
where;  
◦ There is a record of traffic collisions during switch off times  
◦ There is high crime during switch off times  
◦ There are Roundabouts, complex junctions etc. 
◦ There is CCTV coverage  
◦ There are pedestrian crossings  
◦There is 24 hour use e.g. Hospitals  
 There is sheltered accommodation and housing for vulnerable 
people  
 
Some initial investment would be required to make the 
technical changes necessary to deliver ongoing savings. Public 
consultation may also be required in some areas. Additional 
switch offs could potentially reduce costs by another 20%.  

100  

3R15  Planning Transportation & Highways  Reduce Winter G ritting Routes  
The Council currently affords priority status for gritting to 62% 
of the local road network - 712 miles. The proposals would 

40  

P
age 22



23 
 

reduce this to 42% by 2017-18 with just the main arterial routes 
and spinal link roads being afforded priority status  

3R17  Planning Transportation & Highways  New Charges for Permits for Car Parking, Skips and 
Scaffolding; Charges for Dropped kerb applications and 
events on the highway co-ordination  
The proposal introduces new charges for residents car parking 
permits and for skips and scaffolding on the highways. 
Applications for dropped kerbs will incur a charge as will staff 
time involved in co-ordinating events and parades. Licence 
fees will be introduced for cranes and cherry pickers.  

67  

3R18  Planning Transportation & Highways  Re-Structure Planning Transport & Highways and Transfe r 
Some Functions to the West Yorkshire Combined 
Authority  
The proposal will change administrative support, merge 
Transport Development and Highways Asset management in 
to one Team and seek to centralise some functions to the West 
Yorkshire Combined Authority – these are Highways Design, 
Traffic control, Highways Structures, Transport Planning and 
Highways Development Control.  
Transfer of functions would remove the Council’s ability to 
deliver its own strategic highway improvements without having 
to use consultants.  
Review the provision of highways inclusion and mobility advice 
which could reduce effectiveness and impact in this area of 
work.  

125  

 
Environment and Sport  
 

 

NEW 
REF  

Service Area or function  Proposal for Change  2017/18 
£’000 
Impact  
 

3E1  Waste - Waste Minimisation  Waste Minimisation – Support and Encourage Recycling; 
Provide One General Waste Bin and End the Collectio n of 
Side Waste  
The Council has agreed a Domestic Waste and Recycling 

200  

P
age 23



24 
 

Policy that will increase recycling and reduce domestic waste 
and its associated disposal costs. The current and ongoing 
costs of disposal of domestic waste are not affordable.  
Education, information and raising awareness will support 
increased recycling and a scheme providing community 
incentives to recycle will be introduced in places where 
households have little space for separate recycling bins. The 
Council will work with householders to eliminate the need to 
leave out side waste and will only collect one general waste bin 
from each household; households above a certain size can 
apply for a larger bin. 

3E2  Waste - Green Waste  Introduce Charges for Green Waste Collection  
The Council currently subsidises the collection of green waste 
in some parts of the District, mainly serving households with 
larger gardens through its brown bin system. The proposals will 
introduce a charge of £35p.a. per household for collection of 
green waste for which householders will receive a specified 
number of collections a year in turn. Charging for green waste 
collection is increasingly common among local authorities and 
will remove the unfairness of the free service only being offered 
to households in certain parts of the District.  
Following consideration of feedback from the consultation 
process the proposal is now to reduce the proposed charge of 
£40p.a down to £35p.a. In addition there will be an early bird 
discount offered in 2016/17 for early take up of the offer 
reducing the £35p.a. charge to £28p.a..  

310  

3E3  Waste - Trade Waste  Trade Waste – revise charging and payment and improve 
efficiency  
Increasing trade waste charges will generate additional income 
while a move to cashless payment systems will improve 
efficiency and reduce costs to the Council. “Pay as you go” 
arrangements will eliminate building up bad debt and other 
operational efficiencies will contribute to the overall savings.  

200  

3E4  Waste - Waste Collection  Alternate week Waste Collections  
The proposal will mean alternate weekly collections of 
household waste and recycling.  

1,000  

P
age 24



25 
 

.   
 
 

The current and ongoing costs of disposal of domestic waste 
are not affordable. The proposal will reduce the total number of 
collections per year for each household but maintain weekly 
visits.  

P
age 25



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 
Report of the Strategic Director of Health and Wellbeing and Strategic Director of Place to 
the meeting of Environment and Waste Overview and Scrutiny Committee to be held on 
January 31st 2016 

V 
 
 
Subject:  The Transport and rendering of Animal by Products at Omega Proteins Ltd, 
Thornton. 
 
 
 
 
Summary statement: 
At the meeting of the Environment and Waste Overview and Scrutiny Committee in April 
2015 a joint report was brought before members to update on a number or actions in 
relation to the transport and rendering of animal by products at Omega Proteins Ltd, 
Thornton. The committee requested that a further report be brought to update members, 
this report provides that update. 
 
 

Bev Maybury 
Director of Health and Wellbeing 
Steve Hartley 
Director of Place 
 

Portfolio:   
 
Health and Well being 
 

Report Contact:  Ruth Lees Principal 
Environmental Health Manager 
Phone: (01274) 431349 
E-mail: ruth.lees@bradford.gov.uk 
John Eyles, Major Developments 
Manager 
Phone: (01274) 432484 
E-mail: john.eyles@bradford.gov.uk 
Richard Gelder, Highways Services 
Manager 
Phone: (01274) 437603 
E-mail: richard.gelder@bradford.gov.uk 
 

 Overview & Scrutiny Area:  
 
Environment and Waste 
Management 

 
 

Page 27

Agenda Item 9/



 

1. SUMMARY 
 
At the meeting of the Environment and Waste Overview and Scrutiny Committee in April 2015 a 
joint report was brought before members to update on a number or actions in relation to the 
transport and rendering of animal by products at Omega Proteins Ltd, Thornton (The Company). 
The committee requested that a further report be brought to update members, after the result of 
the Company’s appeal against some of the permit conditions to the Planning Inspectorate had 
been received. This report provides that update. 
 
 2. BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 The Permit 

A new varied permit was issued to the Company on February 4th 2015. This permit has 
required the Company to meet certain requirements in relation to the operation of the plant 
which go beyond the advice within the statutory guidance. On March 27th 2015 the 
Company submitted an appeal against the varied permit to the Planning Inspectorate. The 
appeal was heard in November 2015 and the Planning Inspectors decision was received by 
the Authority on September 7th 2016. The Inspector ruled in relation to 4 contested 
conditions as follows: 

 
2.1.1 Condition 2.3 stated that “Residence times for air extracted to the biofilters shall not be less 

than 45 seconds. The residence time shall be calculated and recorded each month, using a 
method agreed by the regulator” 
After weighing up the information submitted by both parties and available in documents and 
guidance the Inspector ruled that “Condition 2.3 is necessary and enforceable in its current 
form and should remain on the notice of variation” 

 
2.1.2 Condition 4.25 states “…An enclosed building shall be constructed to store trailers arriving 

on site containing animal by-products by 4th August 2015. The building shall not be used for 
storing trailers containing animal by-products until it can be demonstrated to the regulator 
that it is under negative pressure and that air is extracted from the building to effective 
odour control plant. Thereafter no trailers containing animal by-products shall be stored 
outside…”.The date for building the trailer shed was amended to March 31st 2016. This was 
completed, including the required extraction from the shed to the bio filters by April 11th 
2016, before the outcome of the hearing was received. 

 
2.1.3 Condition 17.1 states that “…By the 4th August 2015, the rating level of noise emitted from 

the site’s fixed plant and machinery when operating shall not, at any time, exceed 5db(A) 
above the existing background levels at the boundary with any noise-sensitive residential 
premises. The rating level shall be assessed in accordance with the current version of 
British Standard 4142 and confirmation of the findings of the assessment shall be 
submitted to the regulator.…”. 
After weighing up all the information submitted by both parties, and considering information 
in technical documents and guidance, the inspector ruled that “condition 17.1 provides a 
means of determining there to be no reasonable cause for annoyance to persons beyond 
the installation boundary. As a consequence, it has been demonstrated that condition 17.1 
is necessary and enforceable in its current form and should be retained.” 

 
2.1.4 The final consideration was “Whether the notice of variation should include the former 

Appendix 1”. (For clarification the reasons for appeal state that: the previous permit 
included a site boundary that was distinct from the installation boundary; this was shown in 
the permit’s Appendix 1 and was for the odour boundary condition; ) 
After considering the submissions and the technical guidance the Inspector ruled that the 
currently delineated permit area within the notice of variation indicates the extent of the 

Page 28



 

installation as defined by Schedule 1 of the Regulations. Therefore, the appeal for the 
inclusion of the former Appendix 1 should be dismissed.  

 
2.1.5 Following the receipt of the Inspectors decision notice the Company decided to apply for 

judicial review in relation to the matter covered in 2.1.4 in relation to the site boundary. That 
matter has not yet been considered by the Administrative Court although correspondence 
has been received by the council’s legal services indicating that this matter is progressing 
through the legal process. 

 
2.1.6 Following receipt of the Inspectors decision a varied permit incorporating the relevant 

changes was issued to the Company on the 25th November 2016. 
 
2.1.7 Since the date of the last report and following on from the issue of the varied permit in 

February 2015 a number of works have been carried out at the plant: 
 

• May 2015 - Continuous monitoring equipment installed on the  thermal 
oxidiser (temperature, oxygen and carbon dioxide) 

• July 2015-  Additional extraction installed above the raw materials hoppers (to improve 
general extraction and prevent fugitive emissions) 

• December 2015- Decision to grant planning permission for an increase in the stack height 
to the thermal oxidiser (20m to 25m) (although extension already in place as an agreed 
trial) 

• April 2016 Trailer shed completed including extraction to the biofilter. 
• October 2016 biofilter 2 media replaced. 

 
2.2 Complaints about odour. 
 
The following table indicates the level of complaint which has been received about the premises 
since the last report was brought.. 
 
 2015 2016 
January 6 4 
February 6 7 
March 7 4 
April 9 2 
May 10 4 
June 20 4 
July 13 24 
August 6 16 
September 14 18 
October 8 5 
November 14 17 
December 7 5 
 
2.2.1 The annual odour monitoring at the site was carried out in June. The results, which were 

received on July 18th 2016 showed that biofilters one and three were performing well with 
95% efficiency but biofilter 2 was less efficient removing only 75 % of the odours. 
(Appendix 1 contains a letter which was sent to the company about this.) 

 
2.2.2 Following on from this the company agreed to replace the biofilter media in biofilter 2. This 

was carried out in September, the poor performance of this biofilter may account for the 

Page 29



 

elevated levels of complaint in July, August and September. The Company have recently 
written to the Authority saying that they intend to replace the media in biofilter 1 in January. 

 
2.2.3 Visits have been made to the site both routinely and in response to the complaint. On no 

occasions have officers witnessed an offensive odour from the plant beyond the site 
boundary. The improvements to the biofilters, the additional extraction fitted above the raw 
materials hoppers and the fact that all trailers containing raw materials are now stored 
within the raw materials shed should continue to improve odour controls at the site. 

 
2.3 Response from Planning  
 
The planning service has no particular concerns regarding the current operation of the Omega 
Proteins site at Thornton 
  
2.4  Response from Transportation and Highways regarding safety issues  
 
2.4.1  Update on Keelham Primary School. Scheme proposals involve the provision of advisory 

20mph speed limit signs (incorporating flashing amber lights) which will operate only at the 
start and end of the school day, and will not be legally enforceable. It is also proposed to 
replace the existing 'Children' warning sign and supplementary 'Patrol' plate opposite the 
bakery with a new 'Children warning sign with 'School' plate. Appendix 2 shows the 
locations of the proposed part-time 20mph speed limit signs. All the proposed new sign 
faces have been ordered. 

  
2.4.2 The part-time 20mph signs require electrical feeds. Those feeds are to be supplied by a 

third party (Northern Power Grid) and it is anticipated that the flashing part-time 20mph 
signs will become operative in early February 2017. Once the signing works are complete, 
Sue Snoddy (Road Safety) will be attending Keelham Primary School in order to carry out a 
Day of Action with staff and pupils. 

  
2.4.3 Two bollards have recently been installed on the footpath on Brighouse Road in the vicinity 

of Well Heads.  This is to stop frequent manoeuvre of vehicles driving over the footpath and 
endangering parents and children 

 
3. OTHER CONSIDERATIONS 
There are no other matters for consideration at this time. 
 
4. OPTIONS 
 
The initial report brought before scrutiny in July 2012 was following a petition from residents 
regarding the transport and rendering of animal by products. This petition raised many issues. 
Reports regarding these matters have been brought before scrutiny for almost 5 years and many 
of the issues raised have now been looked into and where the legal powers exist improvements 
have been secured. The new varied permit has required many significant improvements to the 
operation of the plant and the odour controls at the site. For some issues in the petition no 
regulatory options are available to the Council eg the odour being emitted from wagons, however 
we are advised that the Company is still working towards the use of a new design of trailer to 
tackle this. Some matters for example movement of HGV’s and compliance with the environmental 
permit are on going matters which fall to officers of the Councils Planning Service and 
Environmental Health Service to enforce as part of their statutory functions.  
Members have the option to require officers to continue to bring further reports before scrutiny 
about these matters or they have the option to accept that ongoing regulatory action is a function 
of the Council in relation to this and many other sites across the District and that no further reports 
be brought. 

Page 30



 

 
5. FINANCIAL & RESOURCE APPRAISAL 
 
The regulation of this process and associated complaint investigation is very resource intensive. 
The permitting regime was introduced on a polluter pays principal but the cost to the authority of 
regulating this Company far exceeds the annual fee paid. This cost is currently contained within 
existing Council budgets. If legal action was undertaken this could be a significant cost to the 
authority and efforts would be made to recover the legal costs from the company.  
 
6. RISK MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE ISSUES 
 
There are no significant risks arising out of the implementation of the proposed recommendations 
 
7. LEGAL APPRAISAL 
 
Odour nuisances arising from commercial activities is regulated by the Pollution Prevention and 
Control Act 1999 and the Environmental Permitting (England & Wales ) Regulations 2010. The 
Council has issued a permit to operate a scheduled installation namely an animal by product 
rendering process activity at Erlings Works Half Acre Road Thornton and the compliance with the 
conditions of permit is monitored by and regulated by officers of the Councils EHS.   
 
8. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
8.1 EQUALITY & DIVERSITY 
 
There are no equality and diversity issues arising out of the proposed recommendations.. 
 
8.2 SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
The Council seeks to work with both the business and the local community to ensure the social, 
economic and environmental well being of the area. In doing so it is guided by legislation and 
statutory powers which place constraints on the Local Authority 
 
8.3 GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS IMPACTS 
 
The greenhouse gas emissions associated with the animal by product industry can be attributed to 
it's demand for energy. Rendering of raw materials in particular requires constant high 
temperatures often met by gas powered boilers. The industry's demand for road transport fuels is 
also a significant factor to influence greenhouse gas emissions that is inevitably linked to the 
distance between source locations, storage and processing sites.  
 
8.4 COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 
 
There are no safer communities’ issues arising out of the proposed recommendations. 
 
8.5 HUMAN RIGHTS ACT 
 
Regard must be had to Human Rights legislation in all action taken by Bradford Council 
 
8.6 TRADE UNION 
 
� There are no trade union issues.   
 
 

Page 31



 

 
8.7 WARD IMPLICATIONS 
 
The Omega plant is located in the Bingley Rural ward. The residents affected by the plant are 
located in both the Bingley Rural ward and the Thornton and Allerton ward.  
 
9. NOT FOR PUBLICATION DOCUMENTS 
 
‘None’.   
 
10. RECOMMENDATIONS. 
 
1. It is recommended that officers should be supported in their statutory duties to investigate and 
take enforcement action as appropriate and that ward members and the scrutiny chair are kept 
advised of any key actions. 
 
11. APPENDICES 
 
Appendix 1 Letter to mega Proteins dated August 5th 2016 
Appendix 2 Plan showing location of 20 MPH signs. 
 
12. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 
None 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Material

Scheme Ref.

Background

Border

Letter colour

Ref.

SIGN FACE

Width

Height

Area

x-heightSign 606

A6033 Haworth Road, Crossroads

62.5

N/A

YELLOW

N/A

Class RA2 (12899-1:2007) 1.36m²

1770mm

770mm

Proposed advisory 20mph

'School' sign on new 89mm

wide based posts

Reproduced from the OS MasterMap

by permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of

the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationary Office.

© Crown copyright 2008.  All rights reserved.

Licence number 100019304.








Existing derestricted to

30mph speed limit change

B

A

Replace existing 'Patrol' sign at

location A & 'School' sign at location

B with '20mph advisory speed limit

sign' (see inset detail)

Department of Regeneration

Transportation and Highways Service

OriginalA

DateInits

Traffic & Highways North

Stockbridge Depot

Royd Ings Avenue

Keighley

BD21 4BX

C P Leach BSc(Hons) CEng MICE DMS

Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank



 1 

 

Report of the Chair of the Environment and Waste 
Management Overview and Scrutiny Committee to be 
held on Tuesday 31 January 2017. 

W 
 
 
Subject:   
 
Environment and Waste Management Overview and Scrut iny Committee – Work 
Programme 2016/17 
 
 
 
Summary statement: 
 
This report presents the Committee’s Work Programme  2016-17 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Cllr Kevin Warnes 
Chair – Environment and Waste Management   
Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

Portfolio:   
 
Environment. 
Transport. 
 

Report Contact:  Mustansir Butt 
Overview and Scrutiny Lead 
Phone: (01274) 432574 
Email: mustansir.butt@bradford.gov.uk 

 Overview & Scrutiny Area:  
 
Environment and Waste Management. 

Page 39

Agenda Item 10/



 2 

 
 
1. SUMMARY 
 

This report presents the Environment and Waste Management Overview and 
Scrutiny Committees work programme for 2016/17. 

 
2. BACKGROUND  
 
2.1 Each Overview and Scrutiny Committee is required by the Constitution of the 

Council to prepare a work programme (Part 3E – Overview and Scrutiny Procedure 
Rules, Para 1.1). 

 
3. OTHER CONSIDERATIONS 
 
3.1 The Environment and Waste Management Overview and Scrutiny Committee has 

responsibility for “the strategies, plans, policies, functions and services directly 
relevant to the corporate priority about improving waste management and the 
environment.” (Council Constitution, Part 2, 6.2.1). 

 
3.2 The remit of this Committee also includes the strategies, plans, functions and 

services directly relevant to the corporate priorities about reducing carbon 
emissions, transport and highways, creating a greener and more sustainable 
environment and positively affecting climate change. 

 
3.3 Best practice published by the Centre for Public Scrutiny suggests that “work 

programming should be a continuous process”.  It is important to review work 
programmes, so that important or urgent issues that arise during the year are able 
to be scrutinised.  Furthermore, at a time of limited resources, it should also be 
possible to remove areas of work which have become less relevant or timely.  For 
this reason, it is proposed that the Committee’s work programme be regularly 
reviewed by members of the committee throughout the municipal year.  

 
3.4 The work programme as agreed by the Committee will form the basis for the 

Committee’s work during the year, but will be amended as issues arise during the 
year. 

 
4. OPTIONS 
 
4.1 The Committee may choose to add to or amend the proposed items to be included 

in the 2016-17 work programme for the committee. 
 
4.2 Members may wish to consider any detailed scrutiny reviews that it may wish to 

conduct. 
 
 
5. FINANCIAL & RESOURCE APPRAISAL 
 
5.1 None. 
 
 

Page 40



 3 

 
6. RISK MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE ISSUES 
 
6.1 None. 
 
7. LEGAL APPRAISAL 
 
7.1 None. 
 
8. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
8.1 EQUALITY & DIVERSITY 
 
 Community Cohesion and Equalities related issues are part of the work remit for 

this Committee. 
 
8.2 SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
 This is a key work area for the Committee. 
 
8.3 GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS IMPACTS 
 
 This is a key work area for the Committee. 
  
8.4 COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 
 
 A key area of work for the Committee will be to consider the area of those killed or 

seriously injured on roads. 
 
8.5 HUMAN RIGHTS IMPLICATIONS 
 
 None. 
 
8.6 TRADE UNION 
 
 None. 
 
8.7 WARD IMPLICATIONS 
 

Work of this Overview and Scrutiny Committee has ward implications, but this 
depends on that nature of the topic. 

 
9. Not For Publications Items 
 
 None.  
 
10. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
10.1 That members consider and comment on the areas of work included in the 2016-17 

Work Programme for the Committee. 
 

Page 41



 4 

 
10.2 That members consider any detailed scrutiny reviews that they may wish to 

conduct. 
 
10.3 That the work programme 2016-17 continues to be reviewed regularly during the 

year. 
 
11. APPENDICES 
 

Appendix One – 2016-17 Work Programme for the Environment and Waste 
Management Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 
 
Appendix Two – List of unscheduled topics. 

 
12. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS  
 

Council Constitution. 
 

 

Page 42



 Democratic Services - Overview and Scrutiny 
 Environment & Waste Management O&S Committee 
 Scrutiny Lead: Mustansir Butt tel - 43 2574 
 Work Programme 
 Agenda  Description Report  Comments 
 Tuesday, 28th June 2016 at City Hall, Bradford. 
 Chair's briefing 07/06/2016. Secretariat deadline 15/06/2016. 
 1) Adoption of Co-opted Members. Co-opted members - Julia Pearson,  Mustansir Butt. Constitutional requirement -  
 (Bradford Environment Forum) and  recommendation to Council. 
 Nicola Hoggart, (Environment Agency). 
 2) Management Plan for Ilkley Moor. Danny Jackson. Environment and Waste Management  
 Overview and Scrutiny  
 recommednation from Tuesday  
 Tuesday 28 July 2016 and Tuesday 3  
 November 2016. 
 3) Food  Safety Service Plan. Angela Brindle. Member request. 
 4) Environment Agency Annual Report. Nicola Hoggart.. 
 5) Bradford Environment Forum Report. Julia Pearson. 
 6) DRAFT Work Porgramme 2016-17. Discussion and agreement over the  Mustansir Butt. 
 areas of work to focus on in this  
 Muncipal Year. 

 Tuesday, 26th July 2016 at City Hall, Bradford. 
 Chair's briefing 28/06/2016. Secretariat deadline 06/07/2016. 
 1) Procurement of Waste Treatment  Update on progress relating to the  Steve Hartley/Richard  Environment and Waste Management  
 arrangements. procurement of waste treatment  Longcake. Overview and Scrutiny Committee  
 arrangements at appropriate key  recommendation from Tuesday 28 July  
 stages in the procurement process to  2015. 
 be agreed in consultation with the  
 Chair. 
 2) Water Management Scrutiny Review. Setting the Scene. Julian Jackson/Tony  
 Poole/Chris Eaton. 
 3) Work Planning. There is a need to regularly review the  Mustansir Butt. 
 work programme, in order to prioritise  
 and manage resources. 

 18th January 2017 Page 1 of 7 

P
age 43



 Environment & Waste Management O&S Committee 
 Scrutiny Lead: Mustansir Butt tel - 43 2574 
 Work Programme 
 Agenda  Description Report  Comments 
 Tuesday, 20th September 2016 at City Hall, Bradford. 
 Chair's briefing 30/08/2016. Secretariat deadline 07/09/2016. 
 1) Performance Outturn for Waste Management. Steve Hartley. Enviornment and Waste Management  
 Overview and Scrutiny Committee  
 recommendation from Tuesday 15  
 September 2015. 
 2) Verbal Update on Flooding Scrutiny Review  Mustansir Butt. 
 being udnertaken by the Corporate  
 Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 
 3) Work Planning. There is a need to regularly review the  Mustansir Butt. 
 work programme, in order to prioritise  
 and manage resources. 

 Tuesday, 25th October 2016 at City Hall, Bradford. 
 Chair's briefing 04/10/2016. Secretariat deadline 12/10/2016. 
 1) Management of Waste and Recycling  Progress report in 12 months. Steve Hartley. Environmand Waste Management  
 Activities. Overview and Scrutiny Committee  
 recommendation from Tuesday 28 July  
 2015. 
 2) Leeds City Region Green Deal Contract. To include details of the first annual  Richard Williamson. Environment and Waste Management  
 review of the contract, along with  Overview and Scrutiny  
 performance against key Performance  recommendation for Tuesday 6  
 Indicators. October 2015. 
 3) Fuel Poverty Framework for Action. Richard Williamson. Environmand Waste Management  
 Overview and Scrutiny Committee  
 recommendation from Tuesday 15  
 September 2015. 
 4) Work Planning. There is a need to regularly review the  Mustansir Butt. 
 work programme, in order to prioritise  
 and manage resources. 

 18th January 2017 Page 2 of 7 

P
age 44



 Environment & Waste Management O&S Committee 
 Scrutiny Lead: Mustansir Butt tel - 43 2574 
 Work Programme 
 Agenda  Description Report  Comments 
 Tuesday, 29th November 2016 at City Hall, Bradford. 
 Chair's briefing 11/11/2016. Secretariat deadline 16/11/2016. 
 1) Bradford District Cycling Strategy. Updated Strategy to be considered,  Tom Jones. Environment and Waste Management  
 prior to it being considered by the  Overview and Scrutiny  
 Executive. recommendation for Tuesday 3  
 November 2015. 
 2) West Yorkshire LTP3 Implementation Plan. Progress report. Andrew Marshall. Enviornment and Waste Management  
 Overview and Scrutiny Committee  
 recommendation from Tuesday 1  
 December 2015. 
 3) Performance Outturn for Transport and  Julian Jackson. Enviornment and Waste Management  
 Highways. Overview and Scrutiny Committee  
 recommendation from Tuesday 15  
 September 2015. 
 4) West Yorkshire Combined Authority. Focus is on the Transport related  Julian Jackson/Jamie  Environment and Waste Management  
 schemes. Saunders. Overview and Scrutiny  
 recommendation for Tuesday 1  
 December 2015. 
 5) Work Planning. There is a need to regularly review the  Mustansir Butt. 
 work programme, in order to prioritise  
 and manage resources. 

 Tuesday, 20th December 2016 at City Hall, Bradford. 
 Chair's briefing 02/12/2016. Secretariat deadline 07/12/2016. 
 1) Air Quality Emmissions. Ruth Lees. Member request. 
 2) Bradford's Casulalty Reduction Performance. Information to be categorsied by age  Simon D'Vali. Environment and Waste Management  
 demographic. Overview and Scrutiny  
 recommendation for Tuesday 1  
 December 2015. 
 3) Safer Roads. Progress of the Safer Roads element  Simon D'Vali. Environment and Waste Management  
 of the Single Transport Plan and  Overview and Scrutiny  
 continued existence of Safer Roads  recommendation for Tuesday 1  
 within that Plan. December 2015. 

 18th January 2017 Page 3 of 7 

P
age 45



 Environment & Waste Management O&S Committee 
 Scrutiny Lead: Mustansir Butt tel - 43 2574 
 Work Programme 
 Agenda  Description Report  Comments 
 Tuesday, 20th December 2016 at City Hall, Bradford. 
 Chair's briefing 02/12/2016. Secretariat deadline 07/12/2016. 
 4) Stategy for the Roads Safety Team. Strategy to underwrite the continued  Simon D'Vali. Environment and Waste Management  
 existence of the Road Safety Team  Overview and Scrutiny  
 and provide a report back to  recommendation for Tuesday 1  
 Committee. December 2015. 
 5) Work Planning. There is a need to regularly review the  Mustansir Butt. 
 work programme, in order to prioritise  
 and manage resources. 

 Tuesday, 24th January 2017 at City Hall, Bradford. 
 1) Water Management Scrutiny Review. Information gathering session. Mustansir Butt. 

 Tuesday, 31st January 2017 at City Hall, Bradford. 
 Chair's briefing 06/01/2017. Secretariat deadline 18/01/2017. 
 1) Call-In. White Rose Energy. Richard Williamson. 
 2) Budget setting for Environment and Waste  Steve Hartley/Mike  
 Management. Cowlam/Julian Jackson. 
 3) Transportation and Rendering of Animal By- Update on activities. John Major/Ruth  Environment and Waste Management  
 Products by Omega Proteins. Lees/Brian  Overview and Scrutiny  
 Robinson/Julian Jackson. recommendation from Tuesday 21 April 
  2015. 
 4) Work Planning. There is a need to regularly review the  Mustansir Butt. 
 work programme, in order to prioritise  
 and manage resources. 

 Tuesday, 7th February 2017 at City Hall, Bradford. 
 1) Water Management Scrutiny Review. Information gathering session. Mustansir Butt. 

 18th January 2017 Page 4 of 7 

P
age 46



 Environment & Waste Management O&S Committee 
 Scrutiny Lead: Mustansir Butt tel - 43 2574 
 Work Programme 
 Agenda  Description Report  Comments 
 Tuesday, 28th February 2017 at City Hall, Bradford. 
 Chair's briefing 10/02/2017. Secretariat deadline 15/02/2017. 
 1) Bradford Civic Quarter District Heat Network. Report to include details relating to the  Richard Williamson. Environment and Waste Management  
 next key milestones. Overview and Scrutiny  
 recommendation for Tuesday 3  
 November 2015. 
 2) Woodlands Strategy. Bob Thorp. Environment and Waste Management  
 Overview and Scrutiny  
 recommendation from Tuesday 16  
 February 2016. 
 3) Bulky Waste Refuse Collections. Considering approaches to the current  Steve Hartley/Ian Day. Environment and Waste Management  
 collection arrangements. Overview and Scrutiny  
 recommendation for Tuesday 5 April  
 2016. 
 4) Trade Waste Update. Richard Longcake. 
 5) The procurement of the new waste  Steve Hartley/John  Environment and Waste Management  
 treatment contract for the treatment of  Major/Richard Longcake. Overview and Scrutiny  
 kerbside residual waste. Recommendation from Tuesday 26 July 
  2016. 
 6) Work Planning. There is a need to regularly review the  Mustansir Butt. 
 work programme, in order to prioritise  
 and manage resources. 

 Tuesday, 28th March 2017 at City Hall, Bradford. 
 Chair's briefing 10/03/2017. Secretariat deadline 15/03/2017. 
 1) Ilkley Moor Management Plan. Final version of the Management Plan  Danny Jackson. Environment and Waste Management  
 to be presented to the Committee, prior  Overview and Scrutiny Committee  
 to its approval by Natural England. recommendation from Tuesday 28 June 
  2016. 

 18th January 2017 Page 5 of 7 

P
age 47



 Environment & Waste Management O&S Committee 
 Scrutiny Lead: Mustansir Butt tel - 43 2574 
 Work Programme 
 Agenda  Description Report  Comments 
 Tuesday, 28th March 2017 at City Hall, Bradford. 
 Chair's briefing 10/03/2017. Secretariat deadline 15/03/2017. 
 2) Public Health Outcomes Framework. More in-depth reports on the two  Shirley Brierly/Sarah  Environment and Waste Management  
 indicators entitled utilisation of outdoor  Possingham. Overview and Scrutiny Committee  
 spaces for health reasons and the  recommendation from Tuesday 8  
 fraction of mortality attributable to  March 2016. 
 partyiculate air pollution, to be  
 presneted in the next muncipal year,  
 following a disucssion among the  
 Overview and Scrutiny Chairs to agree 
  the most appropriate way to scrutinise 
  these two important issues. 
 3) Rail Strategy Update. Neil Moore. Environment and Waste Management  
 Overview and Scrutiny Committee  
 recommendation from Tuesday 5 April  
 2016. 
 4) Water Management Scrutiny Review. DRAFT Report - Key findings and  Mustansir Butt. 
 reccommendations. 
 5) Progress against the Safer Roads element of Simon D'Vali. Environment and Waste Management  
  the Single Transport Plan. Overview and Scrutiny  
 Recommendation from Tuesday 20  
 December 2016. 
 6) Work Planning. There is a need to regularly review the  Mustansir Butt. 
 work programme, in order to prioritise  
 and manage resources. 

 Tuesday, 18th April 2017 at City Hall, Bradford. 
 Chair's briefing 31/03/2017. Secretariat deadline 04/04/2017. 
 1) Bradford Beck Pilot Study Rivers Trust. Progress on the Bradford Beck Pilot  Chris Eaton/Barney  Enviroment and Waste Management  
 Study. Lerner. Overview and Scrutiny Committee  
 recommendation from Tuesday 5 April  
 2016. 
 2) Environment Agency Annual Report. Nicola Hoggart. 
 3) Bradford Environment Forum Annual Report. Julia Pearson. 

 18th January 2017 Page 6 of 7 

P
age 48



 Environment & Waste Management O&S Committee 
 Scrutiny Lead: Mustansir Butt tel - 43 2574 
 Work Programme 
 Agenda  Description Report  Comments 
 Tuesday, 18th April 2017 at City Hall, Bradford. 
 Chair's briefing 31/03/2017. Secretariat deadline 04/04/2017. 
 4) Energy efficiency of Private Sector Rented  Richard Williamson. Environment and Waste Management  
 Hosuing and legislative impacts. Overview and Scrutiny  
 Recommendation from Tuesday 25  
 October 2016. 

 Tuesday, 2nd May 2017 at City Hall, Bradford. 
 Chair's briefing 07/04/2017. Secretariat deadline 18/04/2017. 
 1) Private Rented Housing Sector. The scale and scope of private rented  Julie Rhodes/Richard  Environment and Waste Management  
 housing sector in the Bradford District  Williamson. Overview and Scrutiny Committee  
 and the impact of legislative changes  recommendation from Tuesday 25  
 that sector particularly with reference  October 2016. 
 to energy performance certifications  
 and enforcement. 
 2) Environmental Enforcement Strategy. Steve Hartley/Ian Day. Environment and Waste Management  
 Overview and Scrutiny  
 recommendation from Tuesday 5 April  
 2016. 
 3) Renewables Future for Bradford Council. Update report. Richard Williamson. Environment and Waste Management  
 Overview and Scrutiny  
 recommendation from Tuesday 6  
 October 2015. 
 4) Air Quality Update. Ruth Lees/Ralph  Environment and Waste Management  
 Saunders. Overview and Scrutiny  
 Recommendation from Tuesday 20  
 December 2016 
 5) Resolution Tracking. Progress made against the  Mustansir Butt. 
 recommednations made by the  
 Committee. 

 18th January 2017 Page 7 of 7 

P
age 49



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 Democratic Services - Overview and Scrutiny 
 Scrutiny Committees Forward Plan 
 Unscheduled Items 
 Environment & Waste Management O&S Committee 
 Agenda item Item description Author Management  
 1 Equality Action Plan. On a regular basis, the Equality Action Plan should be considered by each Overview and Scrutiny  Sue Dunkley. 
 Committee and focuses on areas that are within their remit. 

 2 West Yorkshire+ Transport Fund -  Future report in advance of the Gateway 2 submision to the West Yorkshire Combined Authority. Richard Gelder. 
 Hard Ings Road Improvement Scheme. 

 3 Street Trading. The Strategic Director be requested to undertake work to investigate the impact of the increase in  Mike Cowlam. 
 mobile street traders on local business in the District. 

 4 Council owned land. That the Strategic Director Regeneration be requested to make Mike Cowlam/Ben  
 available a register of areas of Council owned neglected land across Middleton/Belinda Gaynor. 
 the District on a ward basis and report back to the Committee by the 
 end of 2016. 

 5 Managmement fo Waste and  12 month progress report. Richard Longcake/John  
 Recycling activities with the Bradford  Major. 
 District. 

 6 Fuel Poverty Framework for action for  12 month progress report. Richard Williamson/Pete  
 the Bradford District and the better  Betts/Sarah Possingham. 
 homes Yorkshire Programme. 

 7 Alternate weekly bin collection trial in  Information to be circulated. Richard Longcake/John  
 Wyke. Major. 

 8 That the Director of Public Health and the Strategic Director, Anita Parkin/Steve Hartley. 
 Regeneration be requested to update this Committee on the budget 
 outcome and any impact on the Road Safety Team and the Active 
 School Travel programme. 

 9 Role of Council Wardens. To consider udnertaking a review of the role of Council Wardens. Mustansir Butt. 

 Page 1 of 1 

P
age 51



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	8 PROPOSED FINANCIAL PLAN 2017/18 - 2020/21
	9 THE TRANSPORTATION OF ANIMAL BY-PRODUCTS.
	Env31JanDocVApp1
	Env31JanDocVApp2

	10 ENVIRONMENT AND WASTE MANAGEMENT OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE - WORK PROGRAMME 2016/17
	Env31JanDocWApp1
	Env31JanDocWApp2


